Town of Minnesott Beach
Board of Commissioners’ Meeting
October 13, 2020
Minutes

The meeting of the Board of Commissioners (BOC), Town of Minnesott Beach, was held
Tuesday October 13, 2020 at 7:00 P.M at the Minnesott Beach Town Hall.

Board members present: Mayor Tim Fowler, Commissioner Adam Garfinkel,
Commissioner Cliff Braly, Commissioner Kenny Campen and Commissioner David
Gaskins.

Others present were Town Manager Carolyn Braly and Richard Hughes. Rebecca Lang was
present by phone.

Mayor Fowler called the meeting to order at 7:00pm with a moment of silence and led
everyone in the pledge of allegiance to the flag.

Mayor Fowler called for any discussion or revision to, September 8, 2020 minutes.
Commissioner Braly moved to approve the minutes. All ayes.

Mayor Fowler called for any discussion or revision to the October 13, 2020 agenda. Mayor
Fowler said he wanted to add several topics for discussion under miscellaneous.
Commissioner Braly moved to accept the agenda as amended. All ayes.

Public Comments: None
Agenda Items for discussion and possible motion or action

Waterfront access: Mayor Fowler said he’d sent an email outlining what would need to be
discussed and/or entertain if the Town wants to secure beach access for the residents.

Mavor Fowler said Carolyn Braly has found another piece of property that might work but
the owner was not interested in selling at this time. Mayor Fowler said the owner of the
mobile home park will entertain an offer from the town to gain access to the beach. He
added that the options were to buy, lease, or rent. The point was made that, if the property is
purchased, residents of the mobile home park could still use it. Afier a lengthy discussion,
the commissioners decided to have the mayor contact the town’s attorney to discuss options
and problems.

Planning Board: Commissioner Garfinkel reported a letter was received from Quible and
Associates, stating there were 6 10-acre lots they want to pull out of the RMU and somehow
have it controlled by the POA. In Arlington Place, the area would have to rejoin the
subdivision to be controlled by the property owners, which defeats the purpose. In the
General Statues under 160D, if someone purchase ten acres or more, it can be
unincorporated from a subdivision. Commissioner Garfinkel said the issue is this what they



want to do. He said there should be an agreement the lots will not be subdivided. The last
approved map does not go into details and this one does and 1s technically in Phase 1 not in
Phase 3. Rebecca Lang said they recently became aware that larger lots sell under different
rules. She said the purpose of the conversation was to make the town aware of the fact that
Arlington Place wants to sell large tracts with the purpose not to subdivide. Mayor Fowler
requested a letter stating the 10+ lots will not be subdivided. She agreed. There will be
more conversation this week regarding the specifics of the letter.

Local Government Property Disposal Procedures: Mayor Fowler reported that the town
can dispose of personal property if it is under $30,000 without advertising. The
commissioners authorized Carolyn Braly to negotiate with Thomas a price of $1 for it. The
trailer has been advertised on the website for 2 weeks with no response

Mayor Fowler said the GS 266D states any one item or group of items under $30,000 may
be sold without advertising and/or permission from the board.

He said the town could have a policy to sell these miscellaneous items. Following a lengthy
discussion, Commissioner Garfinkel moved to table the town property disposal policy until
next month. All ayes,

A motion was by Commissioner Braly to sell the small homemade trailer to Thomas Shealy
for $1. All ayes.

CARES Funding: Mayor Fowler described the funding as from the state via Pamlico
County at approximately $15,000. $3,700 was spent on COVID testing. Mayor Fowler
mentioned perhaps spending what is remaining to reconfiguring the website. County
Manager Tim Buck was asked if this is permissible, but he has not heard from the state
whether it is or not. Money must be spent by 12/31/2020 or it is returned to the county.
Commissioners authorized Town Manager to get a quote to update the Town’s website.
Commissioner Braly said the town needs a new diesel fuel tank. Commissioner Gaskins
said they need to come up with ideas to spend the remaining funds.

Mayor Fowler was disappointed there were only 27 COVID tests done. The board decided
against offering another round of testing.

Town Manager’s report: Carolyn Braly reported there were five approved zoning
permits. Three are for new houses: 558 Phillips Drive, 30 Wild Swan Lane and 50 Pointe
Comfort Drive. The house on 63 Beach Dr is being raised. A garage and shed are being
added to 159 Lakeshore.

Town Manager reported seventy-five newsletters were mailed.

An ad in the newspaper has run for two weeks in the Pamlico News to fill the town clerk
position and will run another two weeks.

Planning Board Update: Commissioner Garfinkel nominated William Ista for the
Planning Board. He made a motion to accept the nomination. All ayes. Mayor Fowler asked
Richard Hughes if he would be the vice chair. He said he will consider it. Commissioner



Garfinkel said the next meeting falls on election day and asked the Town Manager lo
reschedule for Wednesday November 5%,

Commissioner Garfinkel said Waytarer’s Cove sent a letter stating they want property zoned
as R15 to be changed to commercial marine. Mayor Fowler said to rezone property is a long
drawn out process, They have not submitted any applications.

Commissioner Garlinkel said there is one ordinance that addresses, generically, keeping
your property in a well-kept. There has been a complaint made regarding multiple vehicles,
trailers and trash kept on a lot. Commissioner Gaskins said he agreed with the complaint
after driving by the property. Mayor Fowler said it is not legal for him to store junk
equipment on his property. Mayor Fowler said the problem is when we met with the owner,
he has a plan for everything there. The ordinance 73.09 is not strong enough. Mayor
Fowler said the town sent a letter to the resident giving him 45 days to remedy the situation.

Town Projects: Commissioner Braly reported he had met with Charles Register to go over
3 projects. The Town needs to replace the 12-inch pipe at Mr. Rice’s house with a 24-inches
will cost about $1,500. Cleaning the ditch at Indian Bluffs will cost about $800. To improve
the water flow and cleaning the debris from the ditch at Bennett Ct. and Phillips Dr. will
cost about $2000. These estimates were from Charles Register. Permission will need to be
obtained from all property owners. Commissioner Braly reported the ditch at 141 Country
Club Drive West is still on the agenda.

Commissioner Braly said he would have Ken Heath put more gravel in the hole on Hardison
Drive before repaving.

Fall Cleanup: Commissioner Braly said all is “good to go”. Help has been arranged.
Mayor Fowler mentioned that an email went out alerting folks of the clean-up dates.

Financial Report: Commissioner Gaskins asked what the miscellaneous income was.
The town manager said it was CARES funds. All income and expenses are within the
budgeted amounts. The Town’s current assets as of September 30, 2020 are: First
Citizen's Bank Checking $12,359.34; First Citizen's Bank MM 3355,769.08; United
Bank savings $219,327.89; North Carolina Management Trust is $211,509.11; Petty
Cash $50.00. Total assets for the Town are $1,057,812.85.

Miscellaneous: Mayor Fowler reported the marina is coming up for a zoning change.
He called NCDEQ and has not heard back. Both citations have been moved to Raleigh,
where a determination will be made as to whether there will be fines. A permit was
given to clear land.

The mayor reminded everyone that personal emails regarding town business become
public record.

Carolyn Braly said a CD at United Bank (formerly CresCom Bank} is maturing. A
motion was made authorizing her to renew it. All ayes.



A thank you note was received from Mary Duck Whorton and from the Pamlico
Library for the money sent in memory. Town Manager said the fire department still has
not sent a thank you note.

There being no further business, Commissioner Braly moved to adjourn. All Ayes.

Carolyn Braly, Wrn Manager y




